VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

i ' CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 8331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE

. PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2022, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
. section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial stateméng _ﬁ‘g whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opiniory g thges
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board’'s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information: we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing

company’s financial reporting
process AP\

Page 2 of 10

L




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. - Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. - Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financjal statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisioffs o _gasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We cgpefder quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s

. report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our

. audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board :ga_ﬁf_f'Dfl_ ectors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, ffom being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. | L 15 )
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f.  Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
- than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
. foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

. (b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The company has not declared or paidr;gll.‘ly"d'l
contravention of the provisions of section @%}f
f/\
L

end during the year in
g ompanies Act, 2013.
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

P

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 30" Day of May 2022.
UDIN: 22002-TJopfP I KCaoo Yy
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED of
even date)

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals:; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
. assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The company does not have any Inventories, therefore this clause is not applicable

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of

security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable.

(iii) The company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties
. (a) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies
whose principal business is to give loans],
(A) No such loans or advances and guarantees or security has been provided

to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is mentioned:

Companies Opening Receipt Payment Closing
Balance Balance

RDB Realty & | - - 83,12,815 83,12,815

Infrastructure Private

Limited
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(iv)

(v)

(viil)

(ix)

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular;

(d) Since Loan is repayable on demand so the point of overdue of ninety days is not
applicable.

(e) Loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters, related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act have been complied with.

In respect of deposits accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, where applicable, have been complied with.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on

account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

(c) The company has not raised any funds on shbrtt ong term purposes.
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(d) The_ company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

_(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) N_o moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) Thg company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

. (b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.
(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

(xiii)  There are no transactions with the related parties, so this clause is not applicable.

(xiv) (a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(xvi) (a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does no ire to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

o
SN\
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(xvii) The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx)  (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent

amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six
. months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

(b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act;

(xxi) There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
. Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

R~

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 30" Day of May 2022.
UDIN: 22 Q60D IORP I N R ooy
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NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

| el e e
A | ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 2A
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2B
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(i) Others
(d) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

517,337
105,479

622,817

2, Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade receivables 3
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 4
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) ioans 5
(vi) Others 6
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets 7
Total current assets

13,442
2,214
65,336

828
81,820

Total Assets

704,636

B | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8A |
(b) Other equity 8B |
Total equity

1,000
431,561
432,561

Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-current liabilities
Tota! non-current liabilities

432,561

2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 9
(i) Trade payables
{A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(iliy Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities 10
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 11
Total current liabilities

113,443

137,334

21,298
272,075

704,636

Total equity and liabilities
The accompanying notes 11to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In tenns of our report attached

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES . For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants e 8

Firm registraﬁWdzaE /

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor TR e £

Memupership No. 060270 i
VDI 2D 0600 Ta e -

Place : Kolkata. Favexc QA oo\

Date : 30th May, 2022

T Ase—
Priyawart Jariwala iraj
Director m




NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs. In hundreds)

oar ended
 March 2021
INCOME
I |Revenue from operations 12 254,746
Il |Other income 13 6,445
Il |Total Income (I+1) 261,191
IV |EXPENSES
Employee benefils expense 14 7,787
Finance costs 15 21,261
Depreciation and amorlization expense 2A 78,400
Other expenses 16 9,985
Total Expenses 117,433
V |Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items or taxes (llI-IV) 143,758
VI |Add/ (Less) : Exceptional items .
VIl |Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V-VI) 143,758
VIl |Tax expenses :
() Current tax 40,987
(b) Earlier tax 23,419
. IX |Profit/ (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT) 79,352
X |Other Comrehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss : -
b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss -
c. Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss : -
d. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss -
Total other comrehensive income (a+h) -
X| |Total comrehensive income for the year (IX-X) 79,352
XIl_|Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted (in Rs) 18] 794
The accompanying notes 1 to 19 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanrts For and on behalf of the Board

Firm registration No. 324428E

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor Priyawart Jariwala
. Membership No. 060270 Director
LD 220ke)- F[o QP TN Kooy
Place : Kolkata,

Date : 30th May, 2022




NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022
___(Rs. in hundreds)

Particulars or the'
A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 143,758
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 78,400
Interest paid 21,241
Interest Income ) - 59,640
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 243,399
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables i (2,730)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables (65,759)]  (65,040) (75,312) (78,042)
Cash generated from operations | 188,061 165,357
Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (net) | (23,840) (27.462)
Net cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities 164,220 137,894
B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 1,870
. |Loan to Company
Interest Income -
Net cash from Investing Activities 1,870
C. |cash flow from Financing Activities :
Proceeds fiom issuance of share capital
Repayment of Long term borrowings (117,156)
Repayment of short term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings -
Interest paid (21,241)
Net cash generated/(used) in Financing Activities (138,397)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,368
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 846
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 2,214
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank 2,107
Cash on hand 107
2,214

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board |'
Firm registration fNo. 324428E .
i "
P2 A

e

Vineet Khetan Priyawart Jariwala / Niraj SinHa
Proprietor Director ' —Director

Membership Nc. 060270

LDIN! 20 0002 FePP TN X a0aY
Place : Kolkata.
Date : 30th May, 2022
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NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis as a
going concern and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Companies Act”), as applicable. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, except for new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

As required by Schedule IlI, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and

. non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The
operating cycle has been considered as 12 months.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification
G.S.R 255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

B. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date' and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include income taxes and
future obligation under employee retirement benefit plans. Actual results could differ from
those estimated. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are
. included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which such revisions are made.

C. REVENUE RECOGNITION .
Rental income (exclusive of GST) from assets given on operating lease is recognised using
straight line method. Contingent rent is recognised as income to reflect systematic allocation
of earnings over the lease period. This policy is not applicable for variable rental income
based on turnover of the tenant.

D. FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of acquisition
inclusive of freight incurred, duties and taxes (net of GST) and incidental expenses less
accumulated depreciation. ' '

——
AR o

E. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost minus’r 'féfti-éi"';i?}al_ue) using straight line
method in the manner that the assets is depreciated over thg/ useful life stated in "Schedule -
II" of Companies Act, 2013. = -]

F. |IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is

e




identified as impaired. The impairment losses recognised in prior accounting period are
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturities of three
months or less as per the Ind AS — 7 “CASH FLOW STATMENT".

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 are accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the
basis of timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in one or
‘more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset will
be realised in future.

PROVISIONSICONTINGENCIES

i. The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation. When there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

ii. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same
are separately disclosed by way of notes to account.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Adjustrnent of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prlor period are
accounted for as prior period adjustments.
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NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

Particulars e

31stMarch, 2022 |

31stMarch 2021

3. Trade Receivables (Current) =

(Rs. In hundreds)

(Rs In hundreds

Unsecured, considered good

Total

Trade Receivables:-

2022 is as follows:

Agemg for trade recewables current outstandmg as at March 31

Particulars = o= = Ageing
Less than 6 months 3,600
. 6 months -1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good ghE

9,410
Total 13,010

_A_gemg for lrade receivables - current outstandmg as at March 31 2021 is as follows:
: S Particulars e ~Ageing Amt
Less‘ than 6 months 4,033

6 months -1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 9,410
Total 13,442

4. Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents :

- Balances with bank 2,107
- Cash on hand (As cerified by the management) 107
Total

5. Loans

(Unsecured, consndered good)
- Loan to RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Total

6. Other Financial Assets-Current

(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 65,336
Total 65,336

7.Other CurrentAssets i

(Unsecured, considered good)

Pre-paid Exp 590

Other advances 238

Total

828

a. Authorised share capital :

10,000 equity sharés of Rs. 10/- each 1,000

Total 1,000

b. Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital :

10,000 equity shares each of Rs. 10/- fully paid-up 1,000
Total 1,000

c.Parvalue pershare

Class of share

Equity shares (in Rs.)

d. Reconciliation of number of equity ¢ shares outstandmg
the beginning and as at the end of the year : -

Equity Shares

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000
Add : Number of shares issued during the year -
Less : Number of shares bought back during the year -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000




NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

31stMarch 2022 : 31stMarch2021
. (Rs In hundreds (Rs In hundreds)

e. Shares of the company held by holding company

9,900 equity shares are directly held E-y' ntc industries limited, the holding company. balance 100 shares are held by
holding company jointly with others. '

f. The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend
and repayment of capital

The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

o ~ % Holding ':.3.' % Holding
. Sharehold .
Y e Shares held (No ) | Shares held (No.)
—— 0% e 100%
NTC Industries Limited — e
9900 shares 9900 shares

h. Disclosure of Shareholdmg of Promoters .

i:SDsscIusure of sharehoidmg of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows‘

Shares held {No} % of total shares

_Name: o_f the _prornote’-r :

NTC Industries Limited
8B. Other equi
Other equity consist of the following:
(a) Retained earnings e i
Opening Balance ! . 431,561.48 362,209.57
Add: Profit for the year 134,792.47 79,351.91
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year e -
Closing Ba[ance . 566,353.95 431,561.48
9. Borrowings o RS
Loans repayable on demand

-Loan from Nirwana Devcon LLP (unsecured, considered good)

113,443

Current maturities of long term debt R S

Total 20,845 | e =113,443)
10. Other current liabilities i R O = SR S =
Interest accrued but not due on Long Term Borrowmgs - 194
Statutory liabilities : 3,944
Security Deposit Received-Godown 93,843
Other payables 39,352

Total 137,334
11, Current Tax Liability. : s
Provision for Current Year _ 92,98 40 987
Less : Advance Tax & TDS Receivable Current Year T 1195 19,689

Total el : 21,793 21,298

12. Revenue from opérations
- Rental Income
- Maintenance Charges Received g
Total : 265,593 254, 746

265503 254745

13. Other income'
Interest income

6,445

Qther Income -

Total 21 540 6,445
14. Employee benefits expense = S R e
Salaries & Wages,bonus,allowances etc 6,865
Contribution to ESI 214
Staff-Welfare Exp. 8
Bonus & Ex-gratia 700

Total 7.787




NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

15, Finance costs

Interest paid

Finance Charges

16. Other Expense

Audit Fees

Penalty,Interest & Demurrage charges

Sundry Balance W/off =
Filling Fees 42
Professional & Legal charges . 45
Professional Tax 25
Electricity Charges 6,261
Insurance Premium 1,045
License & Registration Fees 75
Municipal Tax 1,179
Rounded Off 0
Repair and maintenance 1,129

Total 9,985




g Ir In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the
stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities
are adequate. There are no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the
management.

18. Earnings Per Share: -
(¥ in Hundreds)

Profit /(Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders (A) 79,352
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) (B) 10,000
Face value per equity share €9) 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) ®) 794/-

19. Related Party Disclosures: -

(A)  Enterprises where control exists:

Sl. No. Category Name
1 Holding Company ntc industries limited
NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
2 Fellow Subsidiary Companies NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
NTCIL Realty Private Limited

(B) Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

~ Particulars

Electricity Expense

" 96,01,569
(81,39,779) (—)

Loan & Advance Taken

- 1,16,87,816 =

Loan & Advance Taken refund -;__;i;% (80,94,000) (—)

Balances outstanding:

Trade Receivable (—)
Advance Taken (_:;
Note: - (i) Previous year figures have been given in brackets.
(1) Related party relationships are identified by the' ompany on the basis of available
information. -
20. Contlngent liabilities: \E% '. ? (Rs in Lacs)

_ Part! culars e

20,000.00

a) Corporate Guarantee in favour of EMC Limited 2009000




Disclosure on Financial Ratios:

Ratio / Measure Methodology | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | ., 7 Reason for
Change variance
Decrease in
' . Current assets over 0 current liability
&) St ras current liabilities 1.16 0‘3.0 285.20% and increase in
current assets
Debt over total
b) Debt equity ratio | shareholders' NA NA - -
equity
c¢) Debt service EBIT over current NA NA
coverage ratio debt ) )
d) Return on equity | PAT over total 9 0 7 Due to increase
% average equity 26.96% | 20.20% | 33.46% in Profit
Revenue from
e) Trade .
receivables operations over | 905 | 2070 | -062% -
turnover ratio ag ;
receivables
Adjusted expenses
&;r;?:r?:ﬁsbles over average trade NA NA - -
payables
: Revenue from ,
g) Net capital Sharalicns Gisk 11.69 134 - Due to increase
turnover ratio w%rki ng capital ‘ ' 973.30% | in working capital
‘Due to increase
4 _ in revenue from
h) Net profit % ii;ﬂ?gt ] 0.47% | 0.30% | 54.52% operation and
decrease in
expenses
: EBITDA over ;
0 0, 0 0 %
i) EBITDA % ol 93.26% | 93.20% | 0.06%
j) EBIT % EBIT over revenue | 66.03% | 63.18% | 4.51% -
k) Return on
: PBIT over average . o
ac/:tpﬂa[ employed capital employed 37j92 % | 36.55%
" Revenue from
gii?obk Turnover |\ oerations over NA NA

average inventory




22. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considered
necessary.

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
For and on behalf of the Board

For Vineet Khetan & Associates

Chartered Accountants TP = 1w;,:"— ,J‘f

Firm Registration,No. 324428E ‘”
Lok Priyawart Jariwala 3 a
” Director Director
Vineet Khetan,

Partner

Membership No. 060270

LBIN, IVOEOL JABP TN 00O\

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May, 2022 Regd. Off: - 149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058
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- VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
.:- \ 5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTCIL REAL ESTATE

. PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2022, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
. further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the fina él: tements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a se érat,e é_p' on?n these matters.

(sl { KA Z)]
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for ovér.seé'i'ﬁ' i
process. (ST
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in_ihé fl
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic de
user of the financial statements may be influenced. \\

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ial statements that, individually or
ignS of a reasonably knowledgeable
fconsider quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (‘the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, and taken on record by-the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, £022, from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Ad. /" '~ |
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Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iif) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (‘“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

ny; dividend during the year in

v) The company has not declared o any.
123:of the Companies Act, 2013.

contravention of the provisions of sgCtj
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h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

%

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 30" Day of May 2022. /
UDIN: 29 060 2 enP 30 TN 35 (|
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(ii)

(iii)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED of even
date)

(a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The company does not have any Inventories, therefore this clause is not applicable

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore this clause is not applicable.

The company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties
(@) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies
whose principal business is to give loans],
(A) No such loans or advances and guarantees or security has been provided
to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates:

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is mentioned:

Companies Opening Receipt Payment Closing
Balance Balance

"RDB Realty & |- - 44,08,009 | 44,08,009

Infrastructure Private

Limited

Nirvana Devcon LLP | - 91,01,434 91,01,434

Page 7 of 10




(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular;

(d) Since Loan is repayable on demand so the point of overdue of ninety days is not
applicable.

(e) Loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

. (f) The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters, related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act have been complied with.

(v) In respect of deposits accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, where applicable, have been complied with.

(vi) Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(vii)  (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
. Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viii)  There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

Page 8 of 10




(x)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(c) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

There are no transactions with the related parties, so this clause is not applicable.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

)-as defined in the regulations
Ifil the criteria.of a CIC.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (ClI
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Gro

Page 9 of 10




(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

@)

(xxi)

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the said Act;

(b) No amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act;

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W

CA. VINEET KHETAN

(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 30" Day of May 2022.

UDIN: )0 QL2 oaP1otTulassn
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NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 2A
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2B
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(iii) Others
(d) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

1,818,359
58,879

1,877,178

2. Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
© (i) Investments ¥
(i) Trade receivables 3
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above
(v) Loans 5
(vi) Others
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets . 6
Total current assets

144,371
18,503

47,344
210,217

Total Assets 2,087,395

B | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(8) Equity share capital 7A
(b) Other equity 7B
Total equity

1,000
1,458,941
1,459,941

Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a8) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing
(i) Other financial liabilities
{b) Provisions
(c) Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

1,459,941

2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 8
(ii) Trade payables 9
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ili) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities 10
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 1
Tctal current liabilities

125,134
90,683

381,532

30,106
627,454

Total equity and liabilities
The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

2,087,385

In terms of our report attached

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES i e
Chartered Accountants A pal)

Firm registration No. 324428E N
€ '_'{[/‘_9 1 __________.“"'“"
o LY 1 — e
Vineet Khetan : © 0t /&) Priyawart Jariwala ftﬁa} Sinha
Proprietor o, Director _Diretor

Membership No. 060270
UBini- D20 o) =HoPR 1o TN AT
Place : Kolkata.

Date : 30th May, 2022



NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs. in hundreds)

s 31st March 2021
INCOME g
I |Revenue from operations 435,506
Il |Other income 23,352
Il |Total Income (I+l) 458,859
IV |EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 25,018
Finance costs 24,819
Depreciation 61,550
Other expenses 141,686
Total Expenses 253,073
V  |Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and taxes (llIHV) 205,786
VIl |Add/ (Less) : Exceptional items
Vil Profiii[Loss} before Tax (V-VI) 205,786
Vil |Tax expenses :
(a) Current tax 59,144
(b) Earlier tax 50,825
IX |Profit! (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT) 95,817
X |Oti-er Comrehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
(if) Equity Instruments through other Comrehensive Income -
b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss -
Total other comrehensive income (a+b) -
Xl |Total comrehensive income for the year (I1X-X) 95,817
Xll_[Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted (in Rs) 18] 958.17

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES g
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board
Firm registration No. 324428E

W et ——

Vineet Khetan Priyawart Jariwala
Proprietor Director
Membership No. 060270

UBIN! 220602940 AP YO TNILTY

Place : Kolkata.

Date : 30th May, 2022




NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Rs. In hundreds)

¢

- year ended
A. |cash flow from Operating Activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 206,787
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 61,550
Interest paid 24,794
Interest Income (445) 85,899
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 291,686
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (55,123)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables (31,586) (86,679)
Cash generated from operations 205,007
Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (net) - (60,531)
Net cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities 144,476
B. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible, 5,800
Loan to Company '
Receipt of Advance
Interest Income 445
Net cash from investing activities 6,245
C. |Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Repayment of Long term borrowings (131,308}
Repayment of short term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Interest paid (24,794) « |
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (156,103)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (5,381)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 23,884
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 18,503
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank 18,015
Cash on hand 488
18,503

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm [regjitration No. 324428E

Vine&t Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No. 060270
UBim 2906070 3aef@ T ow 20520

Place : Kolkata. ,
Date : 30th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

- aka

Priyawart Jariwala
Director
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NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis as a

going concern and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Companies Act”), as applicable. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, except for new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

As required by Schedule lll, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into cuirent and
non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The
operating cycle has been considered as 12 months.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification
G.S.R 255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

USE OF ESTIMATES .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include income taxes and
future obligation under employee retirement benefit plans: Actual results could differ from
those estimated. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are
included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which such revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Rental income (exclusive of GST) from assets given on operating lease is recognised using
straight line method. Contingent rent is recognised as income to reflect systematic allocation
of earnings over the lease period. This policy is not applicable for variable rental income
based on turnover of the tenant.

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of acquisition
inclusive of freight incurred, duties and taxes (net of GST) and incidental expenses less
accumulated depreciation.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost minus reSidual Vv
method in the manner that the assets is depreciated over the useful li
II" of Companies Act, 2013. \ 4

1e¥Using straight line
stated in "Schedule -

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is




identified as impaired. The impairment losses recognised in prior accounting period are
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturities of three
months or less as per the Ind AS — 7 “CASH FLOW STATMENT".

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
-1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 are accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the
basis of timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and: laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset will
be realised in future.

PROVISIONS!CONTINGENCIES

i.  The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation. When there is
a possiole obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
-outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

li. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same
are separately disclosed by way of notes to account.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJ USTMENTS
Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expendltu'e pertammg to prior period are
accounted for as prior period adjustments. ; \
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NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

- 3st] ' 31st March 202

 Particulars ] :
(Rs In hundreds) (Rs In hundreds}

3. Trade Receivables {Current)
{Unsecured, considered good)

e 153,457 144‘3?1
Total 153,457 144,371

Trade Receivables:-
_Agemg for trade recaivables current outstandmg as at March M, 2022 is as follows:

_Particulars’ e e _Ageing | Amt

Less than 6 months 72,586

6 months -1 year i 27,332

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1-2 years 40,764
B i 12,776

Total 153,457

_&gemg for trade recewables current oulstandlng as at March 31 2021 is as follows:

i i Particulars : i : 'Ageing -1 esnannl AmPEREESIE
Less than 6 months_ 83,777

_ 6 months -1 year 29,518

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good ‘{-2years 26,578
. 2-3years 4,498

" More than 3 years
Total 144,371

4. Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents :

- Balances with bank 18,015
- Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 488
Total 18,503
5. Lnans-CUfren i S _:_-' el s e s PR e A o]
(Unsecured, considered good)
- Loan to RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd -
- Loan to Nirvana Devcon LLP 91 014'-
Total : 135,094 -
6. Other Current Assets TR SR R RS I
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits - Electricity =
CGST & SGST Input Credit -
Pre-paid Exp 2,319
Other advances 45,026
Total 47,344
_7A. Share capital T :
a. Authorised share capital :
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000
Total 1,000
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital :
10,000 equity shares each of Rs. 10/- fully paid-up 1,000
1,200

Total

_c. Par value per share
Class of share T T
Equity shares ( in Rs.) 10/- 10/-

beginnlnq and aJ at the end. of the year
Equity Shares "

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 | |/ =/
Add : Number of shares issued during the year & -
Less : Number of shares bought back during the year -

Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000

¢. Shares of the company held by holding company

9,900 equity shares are directly held by ntc industries limited, the holding company. balance 100 shares are held by
holding company jointly with others.

f. The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend
and repayment of capital

The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferent:al amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding. )




Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Parnculars 31st March 2022

| 31st March 2021

(Rs. In hundreds)

(Rs. In hundreds)

g. Shareholders holding

% Holding

re than 5% shares:

 %Holding
Shares held (No.)

NTC Industries Limited

| Shares held (No)

100%

h. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoter

9900 shares

'Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31

, 20221

Name of the promoter

Shares held (No.)

% of total shares

NTC Iﬂdustrles leltad

10000 shares

7B. Other equity

100%

Other equity consist of the followmg

(a) Retained earnings

1,458,941

Opening Balance 1,363,124
Add: Profit for the year 322473 95,817
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year - -
Closing Balance i 1,781,414 1,458,941
8. Borrowings ; T e
(Unsecured, considered good)
Current maturities of long term debt 125,134
Total | 125,134

9. Trade Payable

(Unsecured, conmdered good)-refer Note No. 9A for Agemg

90,683

Total 81,037
10 Other current liabilities e Wi
Interest accrued but not due on Long Term Borrowmgs e - 479
Statutory liabilities ' 11,145 6,090
Advance from Licensee 2,041 2,041
Security Deposit Received-Electricity 000 2,000
Security Deposit Received-Godown 291,278
Security Deposit Received Flat . 712
Other payables = 78,832

Total 315 183- 381 532
11. Current Tax Liability @~ = ; i S i
Provision for Current Year 159.'144 59 144
Less: Advance tax & Tds Receivable for Current Year ~. 118,515 29,038

Total 5

30,105

12. Revenue from operations

- Rental Income

- Maintenance Charges Received

et

13. Otherincome

Total

Interest income
Electricity Income
Other Income

Total

14. Employee benefits expense

Contribution to ESI
Staff welfare expenses
Bonus & Exgratia
Medical Exp

Salaries , wages, bonus, allowances, etc

15. Finance costs

Total

Interest paid
Finance Charges

Total

24,819




NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited

Motes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

Au
Loss on Insurance Claim

Filling Fees

Sundry Balance W/O

Penalty and Interest

Electricity Charges

Telephone Chargas

Security Services Charges

Licence & Registration Fees

Commission & Brokerage

Miscellaneous Exp.

Rent, Rate & Ta.es

Municipal Tax .
Professional Tax

Professional Fees / Legal Fees

Printing & Stationery

Travelling & Conveyance

Postage -

Insurance Premium 3,192

Repair and maintenance 80,929
Total 141,686




17. In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the
stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities
are adequate. There are no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the
manzagement.

18. Earnings Per Share: -

(¥ in Hundreds)
Earnings per share is computed as under: 202021

Profit /(Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders (A) 95,817

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) (B) 10,000

Face value per equity share €9)] 10/-

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) ®) 958.17/-

19. Related Party Disclosures:-

(A)  Enterprises where control exists:
Sl No. Category. Name
1 Holding Company ntc industries limited
NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
2 Fellow Subsidiary Companies NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
NTCIL Realty Private Limited
(B) Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

Electricity Exp’ense

Loan & Advance Taken

Loan & Advance Taken refund

Balances outstanding:

Trade Receivable s
Advance Taken (__:;
Note: - (i) Previous year figures have been given in brackets.

(1 Related party relationships are identified by the company on the basis of available
information.
20 Contingent liabilities: (Rs in Lacs)
pr— P AL '1;;{“ e e

T a_&‘l& i i

a) Corporate Guarantee in favour of EMC Limited

20,000.00




Disclosure on Financial Ratios:

Ratio / Measure Methodology | 2021-22 | 2020-21 | ., % eason tor
Change variance
Due to
repayment of
a)Currentratio | CUTORlaSSeIS OVer | g g3 | 034 | 14863% | current liabilit
part of long-term
loan
Debt over total
b) Debt equity ratio | shareholders' NA NA - -
equity
c) Debt service EBIT over current '
coverage ratio debt A NA ) )
Due to increase
d) Return on equity | PAT over total . o n in Profit &
% average equity 10.89% | 6.79% [ 193.13% increase in
average equity
Revenue from
e) Trade :
receivables g\;::rr:tlgr};ag\;er 3.77 3.69 2.11% -
turnover ratio i ceivgables
Adjusted expenses Due to decrease
Rj;l;lr;?:rpr:tygsbles over average trade 1.35 235 | -42.70% in adjusted
payables expenses
Due to increase
. Revenue from , in revenue from
?J rE:\: :rafal:% operations over -7.69 -1.04 | 637.03% | operations and
) working capital decrease in
working capital
Due to increase
h) Net profit % iigﬁfgt orel 0.54% | 0.21% | 157.20% | in revenue from
operations
' Due to increase
i) EBITDA % Fe%gn%’;‘ avar 80.74% | 63.67% | 26.80% | in revenue from
operations
Due to increase
j) EBIT % EBIT over revenue | 70.63% | 50.26% | 40.54% | in revenue from
operations
k) Return on Due to increasé
capital employed EaB]i-tra?‘;er; al\ée;adge 26.16% | 15.61% | 67.61% | in revenue from
% P Ry a0 & o operations
Revenue from
l)Stock Turnover_ operations over NA -

Ratio

average inventory

22. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considered
necessary.




The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

For Vineet Khetan & Associates ; ‘
Chartered Accountants f > =2 — w1
Firm Registration|No. 32442 == ==

~
Priyawart Jariwala K j- Sinha
Director Director

Vineet Kheta CA '

Partner

Membership No. 060270

UPInt. 92063000 ToTie 25

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May, 2022 Regd. Off: - 149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058
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VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kalkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

NTCIL REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTCIL REALTY PRIVATE
LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us. the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2022, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opmlorr\_n these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key AGQj Via s are not applicable to the

Company as it is an unlisted company. t._:l. \J
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

.

The Board of Directors is also responsible fof ovefbeeins
process. (= Y :
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

_ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decjsions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be inﬂuencad. copsider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audlt,

Page3 of 6
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our work: and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the company.

a. Itis not a subsidiary or holding company of a public company;

b. Its paid-up capital and reserves and surplus are not more than Rs.1 Crores as at
the balance sheet date;

c. lts total borrowings from banks and financial institutions are not more than Rs.1
Crores at any time during the year; and

d. Its turnover for the year is not more than Rs.10 Crores during the year.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stafemen Comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of i€ Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20.14

\
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On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts: as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief. other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;,

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and FEA

AN
N

(c) Based on audit proceduféé wh e 'considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nojing has'come to their notice that has
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caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

R

CA. VINEET KHETAN

(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 30" Day of May 2022.
UDIN: 27 0609 H© TITLARa%.
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NTCIL Realty Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022
(Rs. in hundreds)

Sk b
No e i e
A | ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(i) Others
(d) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Particulars

N :. \'.:. 74
; Om 3151 March: 22

2. Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Eank bzlances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Others
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Olher current assets
Total current issets

305

305

Totzl Assets 30#

2 | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Cther equity
Total equity

1,000
(889)]
114

Liabilitias
1. Non-curre nt liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(iy Borrowing
(iiy Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisinns
(¢) Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities *

1.

2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing
(i) Other financial liabiiities
(b) Other current liabilities
(¢) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current lfiabilitiers

Total equity and liabilities il
The accomoanying nates 1 to 10 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report zttached

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES Far and on bzhalf of the Beard i
Chartered Accountants .
Firm registration No. 324428E

Vineet thetan

Proprietor

Merabership No. 060270
O T Qﬁﬂko’lﬁnﬁ\')‘tﬁuum
Flace : Kolkata. . S P,
Date ;' 30th May, 2022 et

'—“_"::H—:,D "_5 - /“'\.

Priyawart Jariwaia Airaj i
Direclor “pirector




NTCIL Realty Private Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

(Rs. in hundreds)

INCOME
| |Revenue from operations
Il |Other income
Il |Total Income (1+11) -
IV |EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation
Other expenses 138
Total Expenses 138
V |Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and taxes (lll-IV) (138)
VI |Add/ (Less) : Exceptional items .
VIl |Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V-VI) (138)
VIll |Tax expenses :
(a) Current tax -
(b) Earlier tax -
IX |Profit/ (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT) (138)
X |Other Comrehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
(ii) Equity Instruments through other Comrehensive Income -
b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss -
Total other comrehensive income (a+h) -
XI |Total comrehensive incoma for the year (I1X-X) (138)
XIl |Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted (in Rs) _ (0.01) (0.01)

The accompanying notes 1 to 10 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For VINEE1 KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants ¢
Firm registration No. 324428E

Hy’

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No. 060270
LDIN! 220602 30RC T LU
Place : Kolkata.

Date : 30th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

P T

~ —

Niraj Sinha

Director

Priyawart Jariwala
Director



NTCIL Realty Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

L e

L

Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible|

Loan to Company "
Receipt of Advance
Interest Income

A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss (138)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation -
Interest paid -
Interest Income - -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (138)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables -
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 131 121
Cash generated from operations (7)
Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (net) - -
Net cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities ‘7)
B. |Cash flow from investing activities :

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Repayment of Long term borrowings
Repayment of short term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash generated/{used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7)

Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 312

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 305

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:

Balances with bank . 305

Cash on hand =
305

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm registratiolr:WMzaE

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
Membership No. 060270
LT L2 O0LT) NSy FuY A
Place : Kolkata. SR\
Date : 30th May, 2022 7]

T > Jo—
= ST
Priyawart Jariwala ~ “Niraj Skiha
Director - Director
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NTCIL REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

“II" of Companies Act, 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis as a

going concern and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Companies Act”), as applicable. The Ind AS are prescriped under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, except for new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

As required by Schedule lll, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and
non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equwalents The
operating cycle has been considered as 12 months.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification
G.S.R 255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include income taxes and
future obligation under employee retirement benefit plans. Actual results could differ from
those estimated. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are
included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which such revisions are made. -

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Rental income (exclusive of GST) from assets given on operating lease is recognised using
straight line method. Contingent rent is recognised as income to reflect systematic allocation
of earnings over the lease period. This policy is not applicable for variable rental income
based on turnover of the tenant.

FIXED ASSETS .

Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of acquisition
inclusive of freight incurred, duties and taxes (net of GST) and incidental expenses less
accumulated depreciation.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost mlnus resi
method in the manner that the assets is depreciated over the

alue) using straight line
ful life stated in "Schedule -

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is




identified as impaired. The impairment losses recognised in prior accounting period are
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturities of three
months or less as per the Ind AS — 7 “CASH FLOW STATMENT". '

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 are accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the
basis of timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset will
be realised in future.

PROVISIONSICONTINGENCIES

i. The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be mace of the amount of the obligation. When there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

ii. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same
are separately disclosed by way of notes to account.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS :
Adjustment of identifiable items of income and xpe
accounted for as prior period adjustments. ;"’f <

iture pertaining to prior period are



NTCIL Realty Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

(Rs. in_hundreds)

2. Cashand Cash equivalents =~
Cash and cash equivalents :

- Balances with bank

- Cash on hand (As certified by the management)
Total

306

305

'3A. Share capital
a. Authorised share capital :
10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total

b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital :
10,000 equity shares each of Rs. 10/- fully paid-up

1,000
1,000

_c. Parvalue per share
Class of share
Equityrshafes (inRs.

Reconciliatl
Seer

Equity Shares
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Add : Number of shares issued during the year

Less : Number of shares bought back during the year

Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year

e. Shares of the company he!d by holding compan

9,900 equity shares are directly held by ntc industries limited, the holding ¢
holding company jointly with others.

f. The rights, preferences and restrictions - attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend
and repayment of capital

The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their
e e e P e B AR

10,000 10,000

ompany. balance 100 shares are held by

9900 shares

PTG

NTC Industries Liinited

3B. Other equity
Other equity consist of the following:

(a) Retained earnings

Opening Balance (748)
Add: Profit for the year (138)
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year -
Closing Balance (886)

4. Other current liabilities
Sundry Creditors

Ols Professional Fees
Other payables

5. Other Expense. .~
Audit Fees
Professional Fees
Bank Charges
Filing Fees




7.

In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the
stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities
are adequate. There are no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the

management.

Earnings Per Share: -

Earnings per share is computed as underi-

(? in Hundreds)

Profit /(Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders

(A)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) (B)

Face value per equity share

®)

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B)

®)

8. Related Party Disclosures:-

(A) Enterprises where control exists:
Sl. No. Category Name
1 Holding Company ntc industries limited _
NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
2 Fellow Subsidiary Companies NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
NTCIL Realty Private Limited
(B) Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

Loan & Advance Taken

Loan & Advance Taken refund

Balances outstanding:

Advance Taken

Note: - (i)

9.

(IN)

information.

Disciosure on Financial Ratios:

Previous year figures have been given in brack ts.
Related party relationships are |dent|ﬂe Yby

_ company on the basis of available

. % Reason for
Ratio / Measure Methodology 2021-22 2020-21 Change \varlanca

Current assets Due to increase

a) Current ratio over current 1.01 1.60 -0.59 in current
liabilities liability

: Debt over total

) ebtequlty | shareholders' NA NA ; :

equity :




c) Debt service EBIT over current
coverage ratio debt NA NA ) )
Due to
d) Return on PAT over total - T
equity % average equity -193.11% | -75.42% | 447699 | decreasein
: - average equity
e) Trade Revenue from .
. operations over
receivables NA NA B -
turnover ratio avetage trade
receivables
Adjusted
f) Trade payables | expenses over
turnover ratio average trade b e i i
payables
; Revenue from
?3 rrc?\: ec rag:g operations over NA NA - -
working capital
Net profit over
0 -
h) Net profit % S s NA NA -
. EBITDA over
o) ; e i
i) EBITDA % N NA NA
i) EBIT % EBIT over revenue NA NA - -
Due to
k) Return on ;
: PBIT over average | ,qa 440 o - decrease in
ac/apital employed capital employed 183.11% | -75.42% 117.68% | average capital
g employed
Revenue from
gsat?;k THIIEE operations over NA NA - -
average inventory

10. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever éonsidered
necessary.

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324428E ¥

Vineet bﬁ(an. CA

Partner

Membership No. 060270
LR DD OLOTIORAPI IV O O
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board
\

\
/%2
Niraj-8inha

Director

T Sgie—,

Priyawart Jariwala
Director

_'};

o F_geféd‘ Off: - 149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058
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VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

e CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
5th Floor, Room No. ; 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

NTCIL SILIGURI ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NTCIL SILIGURI ESTATE
PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2022, and its profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separaté inion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key

it 'Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company. ke
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’'s Report including
Annexures to Board’'s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Vs = :_T_-:;::-\'h_";:\
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the /ﬁna" ial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic ‘dec':is' ns f_a'r_easonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced, We sider q"uantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our ah_di ork and jn evaluating the results of
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our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the company.

a. Itis not a subsidiary or holding company of a public company;

b. Its paid-up capital and reserves and surplus are not more than Rs.1 Crores as at
the balance sheet date,

c. lts total borrowings from banks and financial institutions are not more than Rs.1
Crores at any time during the year; and

d. Its turnover for the year is not more than Rs.10 Crores during the year.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial st__aterher'ifs. comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of tiie Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. y SRER
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On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less
than Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at
any time during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted
from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts: as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii)y There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief. other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Considered reasonable and
3s come to their notice that has

(c) Based on audit procedures which.
appropriate in the circumstances, nothin
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@ = caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
| (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

| h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to a private limited
company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
. (Firm Regn No: 324428E)

Ly

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata (7
Date: The 30" Day of May 2022. | = |
UDIN: 22 0602-1 0RO TIND LU
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited

_{R In__ hundi o_'s)

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(iii) Others
(d) Other non-current assets

3,212

Total non-current assets

3,212

2. Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Others

(c) Current tax assets (net)

(d) Other current assets

Total current assets

Total Assets

3,212

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

3A
3B

1,000
(1,522)

Total equity

Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(€) Other non-current liabilities

(522)

Total non-current liabilities

2. Current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(¢) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)

(522)

3734

Total current liabilities

3,734

Total equity and liabilities

3,212

The accompanying notes 1 to 11 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 324428E

Vineet Khetan NS/
Proprietor
Membership No. 060270
VOIWI) 2 0t o 2R PR T o RGN

Place : Kolkata.
Date ; 30th May 2022

T Y

Priyawart Jariwala

For and on behalf of the Board

s
(N s

Director




NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

INCOME
I |Revenue from operations
Il |Other income 5
Il |Total Income (I1+11)

IV |EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Lo -0 5 ]

V |Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and taxes (lll-IV)

VI |Add/ (Less) . Exceptional items

VIl |Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V-VI)

Vill |Tax expenses : .
(a) Current tax

(b) Earlier tax

IX |Profit/ (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT)

271)

(2-71}

X |Other Comrehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
(ii) Equity Instruments through other Comrehensive Income
b. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Total other comrehensive income (a+b)

Xl |Total comrehensive income for the year (1X-X) (271)

(0.03)

Xl _|Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted (in Rs)
The accompanying notes 1 to 11 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board
Firm registration No. 324428E \

Vineet Khetan Priyawart Jariwala
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 060270

LOTIN, DOt L OReTIOLS '3L’L!_

Place : Kolkata. >
Date : 30th May 2022 !/




NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

~ Forthe year ended

(Rs. In hundreds)

god

o

Cash flow from Operating Activities :

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Adjustments for :

Depreciation

Interest paid

Interest Income

Operating profit/(loss) before warking capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (net)

'-'-3}5;:!\1@&65512022-4
SR -
167
: 167
(104)
104 104

Net cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities

Cash flow from investing activities :

Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible|

Loan to Company
Receipt of Advance
Interest Income

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Repayment of Long term borrowings
Repayment of short term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank
Cash on hand

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm regislrat‘ijvjzflﬂaE

Vineet Khetan ; Wi

Proprietor
Membership No. 060270

VO D AN OO PR T WS 2501 |
Place : Kolkata.

Date : 30th May 2022 N AL

'_T‘_:: D R At

Priyawart Jariwala
Director

L

Director
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NTCIL SILIGURI ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis as a

going concern and in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),

‘Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Companies Act”), as applicable. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, except for new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

As required by Schedule lll, the Company has classified assets and liabilities into current and
non-current based on the operating cycle. An operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The
operating cycle has been considered as 12 months.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification
G.S.R 255(E) Dated: 23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include income taxes and
future obligation under employee retirement benefit plans. Actual results could differ from
those estimated. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are
included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which such revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Rental income (exclusive of GST) from assets given on operating lease is recognlsed using
straight line method. Contingent rent is recognised as income to reflect systematic allocation
of earnings over the lease period. This policy is not applicable for variable rental income
based on turnover of the tenant.

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets, including those given on operating lease, are stated at cost of acquisition
inclusive of freight incurred, dutjes and taxes (net of GST) and incidental expenses less
accumulated depreciation.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost minus residual value) using straight line
method in the manner that the assets is depreciated ovgr tie useful life stated in "Schedule -
[I" of Companies Act, 2013. \

-IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost’ of the same exceeds its recoverable
amount.. Impairment is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is



identified as impaired. The impairment losses recognised in prior accounting period are
- reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments without significant risk and with original maturities of three
months or less as per the Ind AS — 7 “CASH FLOW STATMENT".

TAXATION

a) ‘Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 are accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the
basis of timing differences being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the asset will
be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

i. The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be outflow of resources and a reliable
‘estimate of the obligation can be made of the amount of the obligation. When there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

ii. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would
be required to settle the bbligation. the provision is reversed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same
are separately disclosed by way of notes to account.

EARNINGS PER SHARE _

Earnings per Share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are
accounted for as prior period adjustments.




NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited

il\lntes to Financial Statements (Contd..)

 31stMarch 2022

(Rs. in hund reds)

3A. Share capita

(Rs. in hundreds)

a. Authorised share capital :

10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000, 1,000
Total 1,000 1,000
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital :
10,000 equity shares each of Rs. 10/- fully paid-up 1,000
Total 1,000
t@:"l?'ar'i'a'[u;efpél"'s'hare 32 e e :

Class of share

Equity shares ( in Rs.)

10/-

'd. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstandm as at the
begtnning and as at the end of the year e :

Equity Shares

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000
Add : Number of shares issued during the year =
Less : Number of shares bought back during the year m -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 10,000

e. Shares of the company held by holding company

holding company jointly with others,

and repayment of capital

9,900 equity shares are directly held by ntc industries limited, the holding company. balance 100 shares are held by
f. The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to shares and restnctlons on distribution of dividend
The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for

one vote per share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders,
except in case of interim dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to

% Holdmg
Shares held {No )

reoewe the remairung assets of the Company aﬂer dastrnbutnon of all the preferentlal amounts, in proportlon to thmr

NTC Industries Limited

1 DU%

9900 shares

h. Dlsclosura of Shareholding of Promoters oL :_\_3 i

NTC Industries lelted

3‘3B Other equity.

100%

Other equity consist of the followmg

(a) Retained earnings

Opening Balance (1,252)
Add: Profit for the year (271)
Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year %
Closing Balance (1,522)
4. Other current liabilities. = = i
Sundry Creditors
O/s Audit Fees
O/s Professional Fess .
Other payables i 3,647
Total 3,734
5. Other income scsidbiiie
- Others 30
—— Total 30
6. Other Expense R
Audit Fees 50
Professional Fees i 45
Bank Charges _ =
Filing Fees 39
Total 134




In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the
stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities
are adequate. There are no contingent liabilities except stated, as informed by the

management.

Earnings Per Share: -

(¥ in Hundreds)

Earnings per share is computed as under:- - 2020-21 | 2020-21
Profit /(Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders - (A) (271)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) (B) 0,0( 10,000
Face value per equity share ) 10;‘- 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) ®) (0.02) (0.03)
9. Related Party Disclosures:-
(A)  Enterprises where control exists:
Sl. No. Category Name
1 Holding Company ntc industries limited
NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
2 Fellow Subsidiary Companies NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
NTCIL Realty Private Limited
(B) ‘Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances:-

Loan & Advance Taken

Loan & Advance Taken refund

Balances outstanding:

Advance Taken

Note: - (i)

10.

Previous year figures have been given in brackets.

(1 Related party relationships are identified by the company on the baS|s of avallable
information.

Disclosure on Financial Ratios:

% | "IiRei's"Sn for
Ratio / Measure Methodology 2021-22 | 2020-21 Change warlatice
Current assets
a) Current ratio over current NA NA - -
liabilities
: Debt over total
b) Debtequlty. | sharenolders NA NA : 2
: equity




c) Dzbt service EBIT over current
coverage ratio debt NA NA ) )
Due to
d) Return on PAT over total - ,
eZ;uity % average equity -193.11% | -75.42% | 147 ggo, | decreasein
average equity
o) Trade Revenue from
: operations over
receivables NA NA - .
turnover ratio Ve trade
receivables
Adjusted
f) Trade payables | expenses over ;
turnover ratio average trade NA NA ) )
payables
; Revenue from
,?J r?jé : rag:?c: operations over NA NA - -
working capital :
Net profit over
0, = -
h) Net profit % i i NA NA
; EBITDA over
Q - -
i) EBITDA % YEVBNLE NA NA
j) EBIT % EBIT over revenue NA NA - -
Due to
k) Return on g
) PBIT over average | _ o | o 5 - decrease in
;apna[ employed capital employed 193.11% | -75.42% 117.69% | average capital
9 employed
Revenue from
gii?;k Tumover operations over NA NA - -
average inventory

11. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considered
necessary.

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
' For and on behalf of the Board
1 \'\

For Vineet Khetan & Associates

—

Chartered Accountants i T —
Firm Registration No. 324428E = =
Priyawart Jariwala
A Director
Vineet Khétan, FCA
Partner

Membership No. 060270 .
VDTN LL060TIONP T3u L 5'35q
Place: Kolkata '

Date: 30" May 2022 gd. Off: - 149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058
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Audit 8 Assurance Functions

Statutory Audit - Corporate

21-06-2022

1. Financial Year: 01-04-2021-31-03-2022

2. PAN of the Assessee/ Auditee: AAECN7253K
3. Gross Turnover/Gross Receipt: 0.00

4, Shareholder Fund/Owners Fund: -76000

5. Net Block of Property, Plant & Equipment:

307900

Auditor's Report as per Companies Act, 2013 for
FY 2021-2022
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